Central Bedfordshire
Council
Priory House
Monks Walk
Chicksands,
Shefford SG17 5TQ
please ask for
direct line
date

This meeting
may be filmed.*

Paula Everitt
0300 300 4196
11 January 2017

NOTICE OF MEETING
SOCIAL CARE, HEALTH & HOUSING OVERVIEW &
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
Date & Time

Monday, 22 January 2018 10.00 a.m.
Venue at

Council Chamber, Priory House, Monks Walk, Shefford
Richard Carr
Chief Executive
To:
The Chairman and Members of the SOCIAL CARE, HEALTH & HOUSING OVERVIEW &
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE:
Cllrs P Hollick (Chairman), P Downing (Vice-Chairman), Mrs A Barker, P A Duckett,
K Ferguson, Mrs S A Goodchild, Mrs D B Gurney, G Perham and A M Turner

[Named Substitutes:
R D Berry, J Chatterley, Ms A M W Graham, R W Johnstone and
M A G Versallion]
All other Members of the Council - on request
MEMBERS OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC ARE WELCOME TO ATTEND THIS
MEETING

*This meeting may be filmed by the Council for live and/or subsequent broadcast
online and can be viewed at
https://centralbedfordshire.public-i.tv/core/portal/home.
At the start of the meeting the Chairman will confirm if all or part of the meeting will
be filmed by the Council. The footage will be on the Council’s website for six
months. A copy of it will also be retained in accordance with the Council’s data
retention policy. The images and sound recording may be used for training
purposes within the Council.
By entering the Chamber you are deemed to have consented to being filmed by the
Council, including during any representation you might make, and to the possible
use of the images and sound recordings made by the Council for webcasting
and/or training purposes.
Phones and other equipment may also be used to film, audio record, tweet or blog
from this meeting by an individual Council member or a member of the public. No
part of the meeting room is exempt from public filming unless the meeting resolves
to go into exempt session. The use of images or recordings arising from this is not
under the Council’s control.

AGENDA

1.

Apologies for Absence
Apologies for absence and notification of substitute members

2.

Minutes
To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting of the Social Care
Health and Housing Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on 27 November
2017 and to note actions taken since that meeting.

3.

Members' Interests
To receive from Members any declarations of interest and of any political whip
in relation to any agenda item.

4.

Chairman's Announcements and Communications
To receive any announcements from the Chairman and any matters of
communication.

5.

Petitions
To receive petitions from members of the public in accordance with the Public
Participation Procedure as set out in Part 4G of the Constitution.

6.

Questions, Statements or Deputations
To receive any questions, statements or deputations from members of the
public in accordance with the Public Participation Procedure as set out in Part
4G of the Constitution.

7.

Call-In
To consider any decision of the Executive referred to this Committee for review
in accordance with Part 4D of the Constitution.

8.

Requested Items
To consider any items referred to the Committee at the request of a Member in
accordance with Part 4D of the Constitution.

9.

Executive Members Update
To receive a brief verbal update from the Executive Members for: Social Care and Housing
 Health.

Part A: External & NHS matters
To review and scrutinise any matters relating to the planning, provision and operation
of health services in Central Bedfordshire commissioned by the NHS or external
organisations (such as the Clinical Commissioning Group).
Reports
Item
10

Subject
Bedfordshire Clinical Commissioning Group Financial Position update
To receive a verbal updated on the position of the Financial Recovery Plan
implemented by the Bedfordshire Clinical Commissioning Group.

11

Mental Health Crisis Care Service Update
To receive a verbal update and progress made by the Mental Health Crisis
Care Service since the report submitted September 2017.

12

Non Emergency Patient Transport Update
To receive a verbal update on the temporary Non Emergency Passenger
Transport (NEPT) arrangements and progress on the award of the future
contract.

13

Primary Care in Central Bedfordshire update
To receive a verbal update on the delivery of Primary Care in Central
Bedfordshire.

Part B: Public Health, Social Care &
Housing matters
To review and scrutinise any matters that fall within the remit of the Council’s Social
Care, Health and Housing or Public Health Directorates.
Reports
Item
14

Subject
Stop Smoking Service
To consider and comment on the draft proposals to remodel the Stop
Smoking Service and discuss the case for change.

15

Customer Feedback – Complaints, Compliments Annual Report 2016/17
To consider and comment on the Customer Relations Adult Social Care and
Public Health Annual report. The report provides statistics on the number of
compliments and complaints received; complaint outcomes (upheld/not
upheld); performance; issues complained about; and learning and
improvements resulting from complaints for 2016/17.

16

Work Programme 2017/18 and Executive Forward Plan
The report provides Members with details of he currently drafted Committee
work programme and the latest Executive Forward Plan.

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 2
Page 7
CENTRAL BEDFORDSHIRE COUNCIL
At a meeting of the SOCIAL CARE, HEALTH & HOUSING OVERVIEW &
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE held in Council Chamber, Priory House, Monks Walk,
Shefford on Monday, 27 November 2017.
PRESENT
Cllr P Hollick (Chairman)
Cllrs Mrs A Barker
P A Duckett
K Ferguson
Mrs S A Goodchild

Cllrs

G Perham
A M Turner

Apologies for Absence:

Cllrs P Downing
Mrs D B Gurney
Mr D Simpson - Healthwatch

Substitutes:

Cllrs M A G Versallion

Members in Attendance:

Cllrs E Ghent
Mrs C Hegley
B Saunders

B J Spurr
Mrs T Stock

Deputy Executive Member for Social
Care and Housing
Executive Member for Social Care
and Housing and Lead Member for
Children's Services
Vice-Chairman of the Council &
Vice-Chairman of Sustainable
Communities Overview & Scrutiny
Committee
Executive Member for Health and
Chairman of the Health and
Wellbeing Board
Deputy Executive Member for Health

Officers in Attendance:

Mrs P Everitt
Mr T Hoyle
Mr S Mitchelmore
Mrs J Ogley

Scrutiny Policy Adviser
MANOP Head of Service
Assistant Director, Adult Social Care
Director of Social Care, Health and
Housing

Others in Attendance

Mr D Carter
Mr S Conroy

Acting Chief Executive
Acting Chief Executive, Bedford
Hospital NHS Trust
Chair, Bedfordshire Clinical
Commissioning Group (BCCG)
Independent Chairman Safeguarding
Adults Board
Accountable Officer, BCCG
Assistant Director of Primary Care,
BCCG

Dr A Low
Terry Rich
Ms S Thompson
Nicky Wadely
Public in attendance 4

Agenda Item 2
SCHHPage 2

Page 8

27.11.17

SCHH/17/41. Minutes
RESOLVED that the Minutes of the meeting of the Social Care Health and
Housing Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on 18 September 2017 be
confirmed and signed by the Chairman as a correct record.
In light of the Minutes the Committee were advised that the Council was
awaiting feedback on its Better Care Fund submission. A date for a Member
Briefing on Performance Metrics would also be arranged.
SCHH/17/42. Members' Interests




Cllr Duckett declared an interest at Item 10 in his role as a part time
domiciliary care worker.
Cllr Versallion declared an interest at item 10 as a Non-Executive Director
of the Luton and Dunstable Hospital.
Cllr Spurr declared an interest at item 10 as a Member of the Luton and
Dunstable Board in his role as Executive Member and Chairman of the
Health and Wellbeing Board.

SCHH/17/43. Chairman's Announcements and Communications
The Chairman advised the Committee of recent news and events that included:
 HealthWatch had launched a survey on the Musculoskeletal Service (MSK)
 Priory View had been presented with a Social and Affordable Housing
award by the Local Authority Building Control (LABC). The scheme at
Creasey Park, Dunstable had also won an LABC award in the inclusive
building category.
 ELFT had been awarded the contract to run Community Health Services by
the Clinical Commissioning Group and Councils.
 A meeting of the Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee took place
on 14 November and received an update on the STP that included an STP
update, digitisation, care homes and the Accountable Care System.
 A visit to Biggleswade Hospital had been arranged for Members on
Thursday 14 December 2017.
SCHH/17/44. Petitions
None.
SCHH/17/45. Questions, Statements or Deputations
None.
SCHH/17/46. Call-In
None.
SCHH/17/47. Requested Items
None.

Agenda Item 2
SCHHPage 3

Page 9

27.11.17

SCHH/17/48. Executive Member Update
The Executive Member for Health updated the Committee on the latest
developments that included:
 A Community Health initiative that had been established to help those
recovering from drug and alcohol problems.
 Recent attendance at the Health and Wellbeing Board Member Conference.
The Executive Member for Social Care and Housing updated the Committee on
developments that included:
 Attendance at the National Conference for Children and Adults, which
focused on the theme of prevention.
 The pressure of homelessness and the current demand on Housing
Services.
 A new step up, step down facility that had been opened in Beech Close,
Dunstable that was delivered by Aragon Housing Association and the
Council’s Reablement Service.
 Congratulations were extended to the Director of Social Care Health and
Housing who had been appointed Vice President of the National
Association of Directors of Adult Social Services commencing in April 2018.
Executive Members also confirmed that at the request of the Committee, a
drop-in session on budgets would be arranged. The Committee were also
advised that a process and procedural guide, to be used when a resident was
at risk of being made homeless, would be circulated to the Committee. The
Executive Member would advise on donations that could be made to support
the prevention of homelessness.
SCHH/17/49. Proposed Hospital Merger
Stephen Conroy, Chief Executive at Bedford Hospital and David Carter, Acting
Chief Executive of the Luton and Dunstable University Hospital presented a
report on the proposed merger of the two hospitals. The Committee were
reassured that all core services would remain on both sites and the proposed
merger had the support of both Hospital Boards. Both hospitals had good and
exceptional performance and quality records and looked forward to the
opportunity to learn from each other in order to further improve their services to
patients and to reduce the costs in management and administration.
The timetable of April 2018 to establish one hospital trust was a challenge, but
the Chief Executive’s were confident this deadline was achievable. It was
noted that the benefits outlined in the report would not be delivered on day one,
however, changes would start to transition during 2018/19.
In response to several questions from Members the Committee were advised
of the following:  the merger plans took into account Central Bedfordshire’s ambition to
establish community health hubs and spokes. It was acknowledged
that, despite the merger plans, the plans of the Sustainable and

Agenda Item 2
SCHHPage 4






Page 10

27.11.17

Transformation Partnership (STP) for care out of hospital, were
fundamental to the success of the new hospital trust.
the hospital would continue to be accountable to Members at Scrutiny
meetings and the Board of Governors. The importance of appointing
representative Members as non-executive directors to scrutinise the
performance of the board and represent the interests of NHS foundation
trust members and the public was key.
a reduction in acute care spending was not planned given the growing
and ageing population, but the STP plan was for an increase in primary
care spending resulting in a slowing of increase of acute funding.
Milton Keynes hospital had not wished to enter into merger discussions,
however, it would be possible for them to engage in a merger at a later
date.

RECOMMENDED that the Committee: 1. Supports the ongoing work to establish a business case for merger
between the Bedford and Luton & Dunstable Hospitals while stressing
the need to cater for the residents of Central Bedfordshire and Central
Bedfordshire’s ambition to establish hubs and spokes within the
primary care system.
2. Looks forward to further detail on the clinical benefits as well as the
financial benefits of such a merger.
3. Seeks reassurance that there will be broad representation on a new
Joint Trust Board.
4. Requests further information when the full business case has been
developed.
SCHH/17/50. Primary Care Good Practice Models in Central Bedfordshire
The Chairman for Bedfordshire Clinical Commissioning Group gave an update
on primary care and plans to ensure residents in Central Bedfordshire received
quality care. The proposals would provide daily access to services and greater
resilience in the health care system. Hubs would offer a variety of services from
GPs and multi-disciplinary teams, dependent on the needs of the population in
the vicinity.
The Committee raised concerns regarding the recruitment of new GPs to which
they were assured that the new ways of working would see the GP’s life
become easier, however, it was a gradual progress with some GPs resistant to
change. In particular the pressures in the West Mid Beds locality were
discussed in light of which a briefing on current GP provision to accommodate
the growing need in this area was proposed.
In light of the discussion it was confirmed that an update on the Out of Hospital
Strategy would be presented to the OSC at the 18 March 2018 meeting. Cllr
Goodchild would also receive an update on proposals for Houghton Regis.
RECOMMENDED that the Committee: 1. Welcomes the collaborative progress being made to deliver integrated
primary care services to the residents of Central Bedfordshire.

Agenda Item 2
SCHHPage 5

Page 11

27.11.17

2. While recognising the pressures on GPs and their surgeries and GPs’
desires to develop their skills, it stresses the need for a continuing
well staffed GP service.
3. Stresses the need to ensure further collaboration with social services,
housing and mental health as part of an improved primary care
system.
4. Emphasises the need to educate the general public about the
appropriate use of pharmacists and GP surgeries.
5. Welcomes further updates particularly on the Out of Hospital Strategy
at the 18 March 2018 meeting.
6. Needs to better understand the position today and for the future of GP
surgeries taking into account demographic growth and emerging
health issues and the areas each serves.
7. Requires feedback on the continuing discussions about the
establishment of hubs and spokes in the Dunstable and Biggleswade
areas.
SCHH/17/51. Bedford Borough and Central Bedfordshire Safeguarding Adults Board
Annual Report 2016-17
The Independent Chairman of the Bedford Borough and Central Bedfordshire
Adults Safeguard Board (SAB) introduced the 2016-17 annual report, which in
summary outlined the following:  Pressure on the Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards (Dols) nationally,
although there was no backlog in cases to report for Central Bedfordshire.
 A focus on ensuring there was no duplication in efforts in safeguarding and
that each service complemented the work of the others.
 The correct governance structure was in place that included the
establishment of a Safeguard Adults Review sub group to review untimely
deaths.
In answer to a question on transition arrangements from child to adult
safeguarding, the Independent Chairman reported there were some young
people who received support as Children who were not eligible for care and
support when they become adults, but may still be vulnerable. This was a
concern for the SAB and was something the Board would be seeking to
address together with the Safeguarding Children’s Boards.
A Board Manager would be appointed to support the independent running of
the Board going forward.
RECOMMENDED that the Committee: 1. Welcomed insight into the work of the Bedford Borough and Central
Bedfordshire Safeguarding Adults Board.
2. While understanding the need for the Board to be as independent as
possible, the Committee recognised the interaction between the
various parties who bring their own legitimate agendas to the table,
appreciating that the appointment of a Board Manager could help to
develop the Board’s independence.

Agenda Item 2
SCHHPage 6

Page 12

27.11.17

SCHH/17/52. Award of Contracts for Residential and Nursing Home Placements
The Head of Managing the Needs of Older People (MANOP) introduced a
report that set out the background and procedure for the re-procurement of
care homes places for older people. The new contract set out the specification
for care services, monitoring arrangements, fee rates and detailed terms and
conditions in order to meet the Council’s objectives. Key changes include:  a contract period of 15 years with the provision for contract variation and a
‘break clause’ were included.
 The contract would align arrangements with Bedfordshire Clinical
Commissioning Group and allow joint development of new services.
 The payment of third party top ups would be regularised with arrangements
for collection and distribution.
RECOMMENDED that the Committee: 1. Agreed that the framework model with spot contracting as a fall-back
option was the appropriate approach.
2. Welcomed and endorsed the approach being taken to contracting with
the care home market.
3. Was supportive of the proposals to deliver greater transparency and
clarity on the costs of residential care through publication of
information and the development of more robust arrangements for the
management of 3rd Party Top Ups and customer contributions.
4. Looked forward to hearing the positive outcomes that could be
achieved through co-working with Bedfordshire Clinical
Commissioning Group.
SCHH/17/53. Work Programme 2017/18 and Executive Forward Plan
RECOMMENDED that the work programme be agreed subject to the addition
of the following items:  Primary Care verbal update - February 2018
 Integration Enquiry Report Part 2- March 2018
 Update hospital merger
 Verbal Update on Primary Care Service in West Mid Beds
 Update on the Contract for Residential and Nursing Home placements to
the September 2018 meeting (6 months+ into the contracts)
(Note:

The meeting commenced at 10.00 a.m. and concluded at 1.15 p.m.)

Chairman…………………………………..
Dated…………………………………..

Stop Smoking Service
Public Health

Celia Shohet - Assistant Director Public Health

Page 13

Central Bedfordshire Council www.centralbedfordshire.gov.uk

Agenda Item 14

Rachael Holland - Principal Public Health Officer (Tobacco Control and Stop
Smoking Services)

Why is it important?

Page 14

Central Bedfordshire Council www.centralbedfordshire.gov.uk

Agenda Item 14

 Smoking continues to kill 79,000 people in England every year
and is the number one cause of preventable death in the UK
 Around half of all lifelong smokers will die prematurely, losing
an average of ten years of life
 Beyond the well recognised effects on health; tobacco also
plays a role in perpetuating poverty, deprivation and health
inequalities
 Smoking has been identified as the biggest single cause of
inequalities in death rates between rich and poor in the UK
 Tobacco also imposes a significant economic burden on
society. ASH tobacco ready reckoner suggests that the cost to
Central Bedfordshire Council alone is £68.41 million

How effective are we currently?

Page 15

Central Bedfordshire Council www.centralbedfordshire.gov.uk

Agenda Item 14

 Stop Smoking Services are a key component of highly cost
effective tobacco control strategies at a local and national
level
 Targeted, high-quality Stop Smoking Services are essential to
the reduction of health inequalities for local populations
 Evidence shows that specialist Stop Smoking Services offering
evidence-based behavioral support, alongside effective
pharmacotherapy; provide smokers with highly effective
treatment for tobacco dependence
 Services currently offer primarily face to face support for
residents wanting to quit across all three authorities with long
term programmes available for pregnant smokers and those
with a long term or mental health condition

Objectives

Page 16

Central Bedfordshire Council www.centralbedfordshire.gov.uk

Agenda Item 14

 To improve choice and personalised access to Stop Smoking
Services for residents in Central Bedfordshire, Bedford
Borough and Milton Keynes
 To deliver required efficiencies across the three authorities
 To focus on our priority/vulnerable residents who find it
harder to quit
 To maintain or reduce smoking prevalence
 To ensure the Stop Smoking Service can attract and attain its
staff
 To ensure consistent quality of services and outcomes while
reflecting the needs of each local authority

The Evidence Base
Established from Countries such as Australia, New Zealand,
Sweden, Canada and the US which have all successfully
implemented quit lines in various formats for several years
(many for over 10 years) to help smokers to successfully quit.

Page 17

Central Bedfordshire Council www.centralbedfordshire.gov.uk

Agenda Item 14

It is difficult to compare specific outcomes across Countries with
different populations and circumstances, however there are
some common themes:
 The outcomes for multi-session proactive (pre-arranged calls)
telephone counselling are similar to face to face support
 Telephone counselling is more accessible particularly in rural
areas and is more cost effective

The evidence base continued

Page 18

Central Bedfordshire Council www.centralbedfordshire.gov.uk

Agenda Item 14

 The evidence about effectiveness for priority/vulnerable
groups is mixed with some countries reporting better uptake
and outcomes with quit lines
 The evidence for quit lines is weaker for pregnant women and
people with mental health issues who appear to benefit from
bespoke programmes
 There is evidence to show that appropriately tailored
resources and text messaging services are effective as part of
the service
 Currently the evidence base is weaker for apps and web-based
services as an alternative to telephone counselling

Key milestones
 Evidence review, national direction of travel and best practice
examples to inform outline consultation
 Stakeholder engagement
 User/customer insights work
 Outline ‘options appraisal’ for stakeholder consultation
 A review of contractual implications and mechanisms
 Procurement
 GO LIVE – January 1st 2019

Page 19

Agenda Item 14

Central Bedfordshire Council www.centralbedfordshire.gov.uk

Feedback or Questions?

Page 20

Agenda Item 14

Central Bedfordshire Council www.centralbedfordshire.gov.uk

Agenda Item 15
Page 21

Meeting:

Social Care Health & Housing Overview & Scrutiny Committee

Date:

22 January 2018

Subject:

Customer Feedback – Complaints, Compliments Annual
Report

Report of:

Julie Ogley, Director of Social Care Health and Housing

Summary:

This report fulfills the statutory duty to produce an annual report for Adult
Social Care and Public Health (Appendix A). The report provides
statistics on the number of compliments and complaints received;
complaint outcomes (upheld/not upheld); performance; issues
complained about; and learning and improvements resulting from
complaints for 2016/17.

Advising Officer:
Contact Officer:

Paula Terry – Customer Relations Manager

Public/Exempt:

Public

Wards Affected:

All

Function of:

Council

CORPORATE IMPLICATIONS
Council Priorities:
The annual report for noting links to the priorities
•

Great Resident Services

•

Protecting the Vulnerable; Improving Wellbeing

•

A More Efficient and Responsive Council

Financial:
1.

Effective management of complaint issues focuses resource on resolution
and reduces the risks of financial remedies being paid. The complaints
procedure provides for alternative dispute resolution which is used as an
effective alternative to costly independent investigations

Legal:
2.

The production of an annual report is a statutory requirement and should
be made available to anyone on request. The report will be posted on the
council’s web site.

Risk Management:

Agenda Item 15
Page 22
3.

Complaints are assessed at the point of receipt to ensure risks are
managed for example; safeguarding, risks to reputation, exclusions.
Effective complaints management ensures service failings are identified
and remedied, thereby reducing the risk of public reports from the Local
Government Ombudsman. There were no public reports about adult social
care of public health complaints.

Staffing (including Trades Unions):
4.

There are no staffing issues arising from the report

Equalities/Human Rights:
The report contains statistical analysis of monitoring information where
information has been recorded.
Community Safety:
5.

To support vulnerable people and families it is important that they know
how to complain about services they receive; feel heard when they raise
complaints; and that action is taken. The report evidences that service
users have been able to complain, where complaints have been upheld
failings are identified and improvements put in place.

Sustainability:
There are no sustainability issues arising from the report
RECOMMENDATION:
•

1That the Social Care Health and Housing Overview and Scrutiny Committee
.note the content of the report.

Introduction
6.

The Council’s Customer Relations Team, based in the Social Care, Health and
Housing directorate, manages the Council’s customer feedback procedures.
There are three procedures. Two of the procedures are statutory and are
governed by Regulations relating to Adult Social Care Services and Children’s
Services respectively. The third procedure covers all other Council services.

7.

The feedback procedures are the means by which customer compliments,
comments and complaints are handled. Customer Relations provides a point of
contact for customers wishing to complain via email, telephone or in writing.
This provides confidence to those customers who may have lost faith in the
services to respond to their issue.

8.

The Council is required to monitor the effectiveness of statutory complaints
procedures and prepare an annual report. The Adult Social Care and Public
Health complaints report must be made available to any person on request.

Purpose of this report
9.

This report provides an overview of the key issues in complaint handling and
the effectiveness of the complaints procedure for Adult Social Care and Public
Health for the period 2016/17.

Agenda Item 15
Page 23
Adult Social Care and Public Health Customer Feedback Report
10.

The Local Authority Social Services & National Health Service Complaints
(England) Regulations 2009 require monitoring of the effectiveness of the
complaints procedure. The annual report should include the number of
complaints received including those considered by the Local Government
Ombudsman; the number of complaints well founded; a summary of the
complaints subject matter; performance; and the actions taken to improve
services as a consequence of complaints.

11.

The annual report addresses the requirements above and covers:

12.

•

The Council’s procedure for handling Adult Social Care and Public Health
complaints.

•

Equality and Diversity Monitoring.

•

Summary Statistics including; number of complaints received; number
referred to the Local Government Ombudsman; services most complained
about; number well founded.

•

Performance.

•

Service improvements resulting from complaints.

To address the need to make the annual report available to anyone requesting
it the report will be posted on the ‘Feedback’ pages of the Council’s website.
The feedback pages contain information on how to provide compliments,
comments and complaints.

Complaints handling practice in 2016/17
13.

14.

15.

16.

The current approach to complaints requires each complaint to be assessed and
a decision made on the appropriate course of action. In addition, all complaints
made to the Council about commissioned services must be considered under
the Councils complaints procedure. In 2016/17, the number of complaints
managed through the complaints procedure was lower (47) than last year (72).
There were also 49 compliments received with good examples of great
customer care and service.
Complaints were seen as important customer feedback and a means of
identifying how practices may be changed for the better. Services were
receptive to customers’ views and complaints, with 85% of complaints either
upheld fully or in part.
As well as the statutory annual report, weekly, monthly and quarterly reports
on customer feedback have been provided to assist the Director’s senior
management team (SMT) to monitor customer feedback, performance and
outcomes.
The Council’s Public Health Service delivers the majority of its services
through commissioning from external providers who are expected to manage
their own complaints. However, the Stop Smoking Service is delivered directly
to residents by Central Bedfordshire Public Health staff. There were no formal
complaints registered for the service. There were 21 compliments registered
about the value of the stop smoking service and the helpfulness of staff.

Agenda Item 15
Page 24

Key themes from complaints
17.

The main causes for complaints were related to poor customer
care/communication and quality of care provision. Service improvements were
made as a consequence of complaints by both commissioned service providers
and social care teams.

18.

As part of their wider work to monitor commissioned services, the Contracts
Team proactively seeks service user feedback on their experience of the care
provided. There are service user surveys both annually for residential care, and
case by case for those receiving home care. In addition, information from
complaints is shared with the team who take appropriate steps to manage any
wider contractual concerns. Where appropriate the Contracts Team worked with
care providers to put in place action plans to improve.
The Local Government Ombudsman (LGO) considered two complaints about
Adult Social Care in relation to a carers direct payments and a safeguarding
investigation. The LGO found fault in both cases but concluded that the first had
been sufficiently remedied by the Council. In the second case the LGO
recommended an apology and payment of £500 to acknowledge uncertainty and
avoidable distress. Whilst benchmarking data is not available for all similar
sized authorities the decision notices available on the LGO website indicate that
in the same period financial remedies for Councils ranged up to £67,000.

Appendices:
Appendix A - Annual Report 2016/17.
Location of papers: Priory House, Chicksands

Agenda Item 15
Central Bedfordshire Council
www.centralbedfordshire.gov.uk

Adult Social Care &
Public Health Services
Customer Feedback – Compliments/Complaints
Annual Report (1st April 2016 – 31 March 2017)
Not Protected

-1-

Page 25

Agenda Item 15
Page 26
Contents
Chapter
Introduction
Executive Summary
Representations Made to Central Bedfordshire Council
Compliments Received Analysis
Complaints Received Analysis
Equality & Diversity Monitoring
Outcomes from Concluded Complaints
Performance in Complaint Handling
Learning and Service Improvements from Complaints
Local Government Ombudsman (LGO) Complaints
Monitoring and Quality Assurance
Customer Relations Team – Support Adult Social Care

Page
3
4
5
7
9
13
16
17
19
21
22
24

If you have any comments on this report, please contact Paula Terry, Customer Relations
Manager on 0300 300 6077 or Paula.Terry@centralbedfordshire.gov.uk

-2-

Agenda Item 15
Page 27
Introduction
This report fulfils the Council’s statutory duty to monitor the effectiveness of the complaints
procedure and produce an annual report for Adult Social Care and Public Health
Complaints.
This report provides statistics for 2016/17 on the number of compliments and complaints
received; a summary of complaint causes; the number of complaints that were well
founded (upheld fully or in part); performance; the actions taken to improve services
because of complaints; complaints considered by the Local Government Ombudsman and
the effectiveness of the complaints procedure.
The report will be presented to the relevant local authority committee and will be made
available on the Council’s website.

The Complaints Procedure
The Local Authority Social Services and National Health Services Complaints (England)
Regulations 2009 require us to investigate complaints about social care functions in a
manner appropriate to resolve it speedily and efficiently, whilst keeping the complainant
informed. This gives us flexibility on the approach to take in responding. However, the
next stage if we are unsuccessful at resolution is the Local Government Ombudsman
(LGO).
Managers are expected to assess a complaint to determine its seriousness and any
potential risks to the individual or the organisation. Each complaint should have a clear
action plan on how the complaint will be handled. The level of seriousness determines the
appropriate method for handling the complaint. There are a number of options to address
complaints. Timescales can be flexible and negotiated with the complainant although as a
Council we have set minimum standard timescales as best practice. Options include:
•
•
•

Local Resolution by Service Manager – 10 working days, 20 for complex cases
Formal Investigation – 25 up to 65 working days
Conciliation/Mediation – 10 working days/25 working days

All complaints are triaged to ensure they are suitable for the process. This ensures
matters are managed through the correct procedures, should an alternative process be in
place. Any matters which are not suitable for the complaints process are filtered out and
passed to the appropriate channel.

-3-

Agenda Item 15
Page 28
Executive Summary
Adult Social Care
49 compliments were received in 2016/17 for Adult Social Care services with instances of
customers telling us that services were getting it right and having a positive impact on their
lives.
There were 53 new complaints received, 47 of which were managed through the
complaints procedure. The remaining issues related to internal management processes;
alternative review processes; lack of consent for a representative to act on the service
user’s behalf; and matters which the Local Authority were not responsible for. These
cases were filtered out and where appropriate passed to alternative channels already in
place to manage those issues.
46 complaints were concluded. Complaints were seen as important feedback for services
and a means of considering how to improve. Managers listened to customers’ views with
85% of complaints either upheld fully or in part. The main reason for complaints in
2016/17 related to customer care/communication issues and quality of care provision.
Performance in complaints handling was similar to the previous year in that 82% of cases
had an action plan to determine how the complaint would be managed. 67% of those
cases complied with the plan. Individual cases had specific remedies put in place and the
majority of wider service improvements resulted in a review of processes currently in place
to improve and inform practice going forward.
Two complaint cases escalated to Assistant Director Review. In the first case the
Assistant Director concluded that the complaint had been fully addressed and the
complainant was advised of their right to refer to the Local Government Ombudsman
should they remain dissatisfied. The second case was pending the conclusion of the
Assistant Director Review at the end of period.
The LGO considered two complaints about Adult Social Care Services during the period
and found fault in relation to the Council’s actions. In the first case the LGO concluded
that there was no significant injustice to the complainant and that the Council had already
provided sufficient remedy. In the second case the LGO recommended an apology and
payment of £500 to acknowledge uncertainty and avoidable distress.

Public Health
The Public Health Service in Central Bedfordshire delivers the majority of its services by
commissioning from external providers who manage their own complaints. The Stop
Smoking Service is delivered directly by Central Bedfordshire Council. There were 21
compliments registered about the quality and helpfulness of the Stop Smoking Service.
No complaints were registered.

Effectiveness
The activity for this reporting period shows the complaints procedure has been effective at
resolving customer complaints at a local level. In Adult Social Care learning from the
customer experience through complaints has led to improvements to practices. There is
some room for improvement in managing complaints to agreed timescales and to establish
root-cause of complaints to identify further learning for services.

-4-

Agenda Item 15
Page 29
1. Representations Made to Central Bedfordshire Council
1.1 Compliments Received
Compliments from service users and/or their representatives about service delivery are
recorded under the Customer Feedback Procedure. Whilst Adult Social Care and Public
Health Services may seek and receive positive feedback from families and professionals
via other mechanisms, the Customer Feedback Procedure captures compliments where
the service user and/or representative has gone out of their way to provide praise and
appreciation for the service provided to them.
70 compliments were recorded across Adult Social Care and Public Health Services
relating to good customer care and the quality of support to service users and their
families.

Number of Compliments Recevied
120
100

88

80
52

60

58

64

66

2012 13

2013 14

96
70

40
20

16

0
2009 10

2010 11

2011 12

Number of Compliments Received

2014 15

2015 16

2016 17

Average

The number of compliments received in 2016/17 reduced from the number received in
2015/16 (by 33%). However, the number received in this period was above the average
number of compliments received across Adult Social Care and Public Health Services in
previous years.

1.2 Complaints Received
A complaint may be generally defined as an expression of dissatisfaction or disquiet in
relation to an individual, which requires a response.
53 new complaints were received across Adult Social Care Services in 2016/17. There
were no complaints received for Public Health Services in 2016/17.

-5-

Agenda Item 15
Page 30
Number of Complaints Recevied
100

88

90

85

82

77

80
70

66

82

61

60

53

50
40
30
20
10
0
2009 10

2010 11

2011 12

2012 13

2013 14

Number of Complaints Received

2014 15

2015 16

2016 17

Average

The number of new complaints received in 2016/17 reduced from the number received in
2015/16 (by 35%). The number of new complaints received in 2016/17 was below the
average number of complaints received in previous years.
Of the 53 new complaints received, 47 were managed through the complaints procedure.
The remaining issues related to internal management processes; alternative review
processes; lack of consent for a representative to act on the service user’s behalf; and
matters which the Local Authority were not responsible for. These cases were filtered out
and where appropriate they were passed to alternative channels already in place to
manage those issues.

-6-

Agenda Item 15
Page 31
2. Compliments Received Analysis
2.1 Compliments by Service Area
The below chart shows how the 70 compliments received across Adult Social Care and
Public Health during 2016/17 were distributed by service area:

Compliments Received by Service
Care & Support Services

18

Finance

2

Integrated Services

2016 17

29

Public Health - Stop Smoking

21
0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

A breakdown of compliments received by service is detailed below along with a table
which provides a general overview of the work each area undertakes:
Service Name
Care & Support Services
(18 compliments received)
Finance
(2 compliments received)
Integrated Services
(29 compliments received)
Public Health-Stop Smoking
(21 compliments received)

Description
Central Bedfordshire Council run residential
homes; day centres; care at home to
support independence
Invoicing for care and management of direct
payments for care
Assessment of eligibility for care and
support; development and management of
care plans; managing care provision by
providers
Offers support and advice to residents
wanting to stop smoking

Care & Support
Good relationships built leading to positive outcomes; thanks for help and support (7);
service user has been looked after so well; visits were helpful; thanks for help since
returning home from hospital (2); service provided has given service user a new lease of
life; appreciation for care and friendship; support provided is invaluable; thanks for
patience; thanks for kindness; thanks for flexible attitude to providing respite care;

Finance
Thanks to blue badge team for resolving issues with blue badge application and being
helpful (2)

-7-

Agenda Item 15
Page 32
Integrated Services
Thanks for compassion and empathy; thanks for help and support (13); initiative and
efficiency of agency care workers; respect for service user’s routine; professional
approach (2); kind and supportive social worker; praise for joint working; thanks for
listening; thanks for hard work and long hours; thanks for keeping customer well informed;
thanks for provision of stair lift/equipment (2); caring and approachable staff; staff going
over and above their duties (2); warm and helpful staff

Public Health – Stop Smoking
Thanks for help (6); motivational; personable; supporting and encouraging (3); flexible
availability; understanding (5); great advice; informative; relaxed; high level support

-8-

Agenda Item 15
Page 33
3. Complaints Received Analysis
3.1 Complaints by Service Area
The Customer Relations Team undertook a project in 2015 to pull all complaints data
recorded by the team into a single system. The team were previously working on two
databases. From 1st December 2015, all complaints data received by the team has been
recorded onto a single database to ensure consistency when capturing complaints and to
enhance reporting functions. The improvements made in this area will enable us to
undertake further analysis in relation to complaint trends in future reports.
The below analysis on complaints received is based upon the 47 complaints accepted into
the complaints process about Adult Social Care services during 2016/17. The below chart
shows complaints accepted into the process by service area.

Complaints Recevied by Service
60
50
40
30
20

37

10
3

6

1

Care & Support Services

Contracts

0
Finance

Complaints Received by Service

Integrated Services

0
Safeguarding

Average

Over the year the majority of complaints were received by Integrated Services (37). The
teams which form this part of the service are responsible for the care management of
cases. The nature of this team’s work is likely to give rise to more complaints as they tend
to be the front-line services that engage with our service users.
The number of complaints managed through the complaints procedure by service area
were either below or in line with the average number of complaints accepted into the
process in previous years. The below table provides a general overview of the work each
service area undertakes.
Service Name
Care & Support Services
Contracts

Description
Central Bedfordshire Council run residential
homes; day centres; care at home to
support independence
Monitoring of quality standards where
Central Bedfordshire Council commissions

-9-

Agenda Item 15
Page 34
or provides residential or home care for
residents
Invoicing for care and management of direct
payments for care
Assessment of eligibility for care and
support; development and management of
care plans; managing care provision by
providers
Protecting adult’s rights to live in safety, free
from abuse and neglect

Finance
Integrated Services
Safeguarding

3.2 Complaint Issues
The below chart indicates the types of complaint issues received during 2016/17, in
comparison to the previous year. Each complaint received can have several aspects, so
one complaint may cover a number of the types of complaint issues set out in the chart
below.
Complaint Causes
Unreasonable Decision
Staff Conduct/Attitude
Service Not Provided
Service Delays
Report/File/Invoice-Accuracy/Integrity
Quality of Care
Poor Quality Information
Poor Customer Care/Communication
Other Quality Issue
Not listened too
Loss/Damage to Property
Incorrect Action Taken
Cancelled/Late/Missed appt

2016 17
2015 16

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

20

The main cause for complaint in 2016/17 related to quality of care followed closely by poor
customer care and communication. Poor customer care and communication was also the
top complaint issue in 2015/16.
A breakdown of complaints received overall during 2016/17 is detailed in the below table:
Complaint Causes
Unreasonable Decision
Staff Conduct/Attitude

Breakdown of issues raised
Unsuitable accommodation; changes to
provision of direct payments; cancellation of
agreement for care home to host a wake
Lack of support; lack of action in relation to
poor care standards; rudeness, bossy,
unkind, aggressive; lack of consultation on
care changes; accepting gifts/taking service

- 10 -

Agenda Item 15
Page 35

Service Not Provided

Service Delays
Report/File/Invoice/Integrity

Quality of Care

Poor Quality Information

Poor Customer Care/Communication

Other Quality Issue
Incorrect Action Taken

users possessions; unprofessional
behaviour
Lack of respite provision for young adults
with learning disabilities; failure to carry out
carer’s assessment; lack of support and
assessment for Asperger’s; agreed contact
from service not honoured
Delay in providing respite; delay in transition
from direct payments to managed account;
delay in providing home equipment
Overcharging for respite care/day centre
attendance; poor quality of assessment;
records not reflecting services user’s
personal information;
Residential: Hazardous living conditions;
poor monitoring following a safeguarding
investigation; lack of personal
care/inconsistent; poor stimulation; lack of
carers; failure to follow care plan; failure to
respond to calls for assistance; unskilled in
moving service users; lack of access to
drinks; poor quality food; no support to
mobilise; no bedsides
Home Care: Carers not attending for correct
length of time; running out of time to
complete tasks; home visits suited to
agency timetable rather than service user’s
needs; incorrect level of support provided;
Misleading information about paying for
care; misinformed about care
costs/assessment process; misleading
information provided about availability of
residential placement;
Failure to provide meeting
minutes/feedback/actions/assessment; calls
& messages not returned; poor transition
arrangements; lack of condolences; lack of
notice around home visit; purpose of visit
not made clear; lack of respect for service
user’s views; lack of compassion following
death; failure to respond to enquiries; not
provided with full details of available
services; poor handover following change of
care provider
Poor quality safeguarding investigation
Vulnerable person left alone; eviction from
care home without notice; complaint not
recorded or responded too; concerns over
role at professionals meeting; financial
assessment process not being followed;

- 11 -

Agenda Item 15
Page 36

Cancelled/Late/Missed Appt

shortfall of monies paid into direct payment
account; respite not arranged;
Not arriving for arranged meetings;

- 12 -

Agenda Item 15
Page 37
4. Equality and Diversity Monitoring
The purpose of capturing equalities data is to monitor access to the complaints procedure;
to ensure services are appropriate for all service user groups; and to check whether any
issues relating to discrimination have been raised. Data relates to the service user
affected by the complaint or a person who has been affected by the actions taken by the
service.
Whilst information is not always provided by a complainant the system used for complaints
has the facility to capture the service user’s gender, ethnicity, age group and whether the
service user describes themselves as having a disability or not.
Customer Relations has undertaken work over the last year to ensure the system is
meeting the current needs of equality and diversity monitoring and linking in with
information that may already be held in this respect about our service users. The
improvements made in this area will enable us to undertake further analysis in relation to
complaint trends and accessibility in future reports.

4.1 Accessibility to Complaints
By having a range of contact options for complainants to make their complaints the
Council aims to meet the needs of its service users in accessing the complaints procedure.
People can make complaints in person; face to face; or via telephone (including a direct
line to Customer Relations); in writing; via email; letter; or complaint form. Complaints can
be made by a representative of the service user or an advocate.
The below chart shows which method of communication the 47 complainants used to
contact the Council in 2016/17.

Accessibility to Complaints
25
20
15
10
15
11

5

11
5

5

In Person

Complaint Form

0
Email

Telephone

Letter
2016 17

Average

Email was the preferred choice for customers to contact the Council in 2016/17 in relation
to making complaints. The averages detailed in the above chart show that email has
consistently been the preferred option over previous years.

- 13 -

Agenda Item 15
Page 38
4.2 Social Care Complaints – Gender
In 2016/17 there were 3811 records of adults receiving support from Adult Social Care
Services. Of those records 59% of service users were female and 41% were male.
Of the 47 new complaints managed through the complaints procedure in 2016/17, 60%
affected female service users and 40% affected males.
The below chart shows that the top area of complaint for females in 2016/17 was poor
customer care/communication; for males, it was the quality of residential or home care.

Complaints by Gender
10
9
8
7
6
5
4
3
2
1
0

Male

Female

Male Average

Female Average

Poor customer care/communication has consistently been the top cause for complaint for
both males and females over previous years.

4.3 Social Care Complaints – Ethnicity
The last census on population by ethnic origin (2011) showed 89.7% of the population in
Central Bedfordshire were ‘White British’ and 10.3% were classified as ‘Other’
Of the 3811 records of adults receiving support from Adult Social Care in 2016/17, 91% of
service users were described as ‘White British’.
The below table provides a breakdown of how ethnicity groups were represented in the 47
new complaints received during 2016/17.
White British
39 (83%)

Black or Black British
3 (6%)

Not Known
5 (11%)

Most of the complaints received in 2016/17 were raised by those who were of White
ethnicity. This is to be expected as the population of Central Bedfordshire and the number

- 14 -

Agenda Item 15
Page 39
of adults receiving support from Adult Social Care are predominantly represented by those
of White ethnicity.
Whilst the Customer Relations Team has undertaken work over the last year to improve
the data we collect in this respect we do not have comparative data from the previous
periods. Further analysis will be possible in future reports.

4.4 Social Care Complaints – Age
Of the 3811 records of adults receiving support from Adult Social Care in 2016/17, 70% of
service users were described as being over 65 years of age.
The below table provides a breakdown of how age groups were represented in the 47 new
complaints accepted into the process in 2016/17:
Under 18
1 (2%)

19-64
23 (49%)

65+
21 (45%)

Not Known
2 (4%)

The majority of service users receiving support from Adult Social Care are reported to be
over 65 years of age however complaints were closely split between the 19-64 and 65+
age brackets.
Whilst the Customer Relations Team has undertaken work over the last year to improve
the data we collect in this respect we do not have comparative data from the previous
periods. Further analysis will be possible in future reports.

4.5 Social Care Complaints – Disability
Of the 3811 records of adults receiving support from Adult Social Care in 2016/17, 58% of
service users were described as having a physical disability.
The below table provides a breakdown of how disability groups were represented in the 47
new complaints accepted into the process in 2016/17:
None

Learning

Physical

2 (4%)

9 (19%)

23 (49%)

Mental
Health
5 (11%)

Multiple

Sensory

5 (11%)

3 (6%)

The majority of complaints received were from those services users with a physical
disability. This is comparable in respect of the number of adults receiving support from
Adult Social Care who are described as having a physical disability.
Whilst the Customer Relations Team has undertaken work over the last year to improve
the data we collect in this respect we do not have comparative data from the previous
periods. Further analysis will be possible in future reports.

- 15 -

Agenda Item 15
Page 40
5. Outcomes from Concluded Complaints
There were 46 complaints concluded in the period, all relating to Adult Social Care
Services. One complaint was withdrawn; 5 were managed using the conciliation method
and 40 were managed using the local resolution method.
The below chart indicates the outcomes from complaints in 2016/17. 48% of complaints
were upheld in full and 37% were upheld in part. In total 85% of complaints were well
founded either in full or in part.

Complaint Outcomes
2%
13%
Upheld
48%

Partially Upheld
Not Upheld
Withdrawn

37%

The below table indicates that the upheld rates in 2016/17 were impacted predominantly
by customer care and communication issues alongside the quality of care provided to
service users.
In 2015/16 poor customer care/communication was also the top area for upheld rates.
Quality of care was also the second highest area for upheld rates but this was equal to
poor quality of information which has proven to be less of a concern in 2016/17.
Types of Complaint
Poor Customer Care/Communication
Quality of Care
Staff Conduct/Attitude
Service Delays
Report/File/Invoice-Accuracy/Integrity
Poor Quality Information
Service Not Provided
Unreasonable Decision
Incorrect Action Taken
Other Quality Issue
Cancelled/Late/Missed Appointment
Loss/Damage to Property

Upheld rates in 2016/17
21.3%
21.3%
12.8%
8.5%
8.5%
6.4%
6.4%
6.4%
4.2%
2.1%
2.1%
N/A

- 16 -

Upheld rates in 2015/16
24.5%
12.3%
7%
10.5%
7%
12.3%
8.8%
1.8%
7%
3.5%
3.5%
1.8%

Agenda Item 15
Page 41
6. Performance in Complaint Handling
6.1 Action Plan Compliance
46 complaints were concluded through the complaints procedure in 2016/17.
There is no timescale set out in regulations in which to resolve complaints for Adult Social
Care services. The emphasis is on assessing the complaint at the outset to fully
understand the issues, and then planning a clear method of handling the complaint in a
reasonable timescale. Timescales can be re-negotiated with the complainant if
appropriate. Managers are encouraged to set out an action plan for the complaint
detailing how it will be dealt with.
Performance is therefore monitored on whether an action plan was in place and whether
this was complied with. If an action plan is not in place then performance is measured on
whether the complaint was concluded within the minimum timescales set out in the
procedure as best practice.
Of the 46 complaints concluded in 2016/17, one was withdrawn. Of the remaining 45
complaints:
•
•
•
•

25 complied with an action plan
12 exceeded an action plan
4 had no action plan but were completed within minimum timescales
4 had no action plan and exceeded minimum timescales.

The below chart indicates the performance in handling complaints during 2016/17 in
comparison to the average performance in handing complaints in previous years.

Action Plan Compliance
60%
50%
40%
30%

55%

20%
27%
10%
9%

9%

No AP but in minimum
timescale

No AP exceeded minimim
timescale

0%
AP Complied

AP Exceeded
2016/17

- 17 -

Average

Agenda Item 15
Page 42
Complaint performance in 2016/17 was consistent with the average performance over
previous years. Of the 16 cases that exceeded the action plan/timescale 14 were down to
delays by the service; 1 was down to establishing whether the issues were eligible for the
complaints procedure; and the remaining case was down to the complainant adding to the
complaints being investigated.

6.2 Complaint Escalations
Regulations require the Council to investigate a complaint about Adult Social Care in a
manner appropriate to resolve it speedily and efficiently. This gives us flexibility on the
approach to take in responding. If a complainant asks for further action on a completed
complaint it will be reviewed by the Assistant Director. If the Assistant Director decides the
complaint has been fully addressed, it will be signed off and the complainant advised of
their right to refer to the Local Government Ombudsman.
Two complaints were escalated to Assistant Director Review in the period.
In one case the Assistant Director was of the view that the complaint had been fully
addressed and agreed with the outcome. The complainant was advised of their right to
refer to the Local Government Ombudsman should they remain dissatisfied.
The other case was pending the conclusion of the Assistant Director Review at the end of
the period.

- 18 -

Agenda Item 15
Page 43
7. Learning and Improvements from Complaints
Where complaints are upheld either fully or in part complainants will receive an apology.
However, service areas are also expected to put in place a remedy which may be for the
individual complainant or undertake wider learning across the service to ensure mistakes
are not repeated.
The below chart shows the types of learning identified from complaints in 2016/17
compared to those identified in 2015/16.

Learning & Improvements from Complaints
20
18
16
14
12
10
8
6
4
2
0
Experience shared
with staff to
improve practice

Review
process/policy

Nothing identified

2016 17

Staff training

Individual remedy

Resource

2015 16

The above chart shows that the majority of improvements identified in 2016/17 resulted in
individual remedies for the complainant. In comparison, the majority of improvements in
2015/16 resulted in the complainant’s experience being shared with staff to improve
practice.

Key improvements to Council services included:
➢ Training for staff in Finance and Integrated Services to ensure an understanding of
the end to end process of financial assessments including how reimbursements are
made.
➢ Continued work on the lack of respite provision in Central Bedfordshire to
understand the types and amount needed to respond to the range of complex
needs of the individuals the Council supports
➢ Safeguarding Team to attend social work team meetings to discuss procedures and
expectations of practitioners.
➢ Quality standards for communication with families to be distributed to workers
➢ Any changes to a support package should be provided in writing
➢ Team Manager to audit colleagues work to ensure that assessments and reviews
are comprehensive and clearly identify needs along with how these should be met
➢ Changes of staff and temporary replacements in the Finance Team Administrator
role may have contributed to delays in completion of financial assessments. A new
member of staff has been recruited to this post.

- 19 -

Agenda Item 15
Page 44
➢ Guidelines to be drafted in relation to the roles and responsibilities of those involved
in the referral/assessment process. A simple flow chart will also be developed to
give prospective residents and families a clear understanding of the process.

Key improvements for care provision that the Council commissions included:
➢ A review of resident property inventories on a regular basis
➢ Training for staff in implementing policy and procedure following the death of a
resident
➢ Training for staff to cover diabetes, hypo management and the importance of a
healthy diet.
➢ Improve tracking of activities for residents through a communication book
➢ A dedicated member of staff to deliver and record all meals/drinks provided to
residents
➢ Fall mats will not be removed unless a consent form has been signed
➢ A system to be put in place to measure the length of time taken to answer call bells
➢ A buddy scheme has been introduced to support transition into the care
environment
➢ More comprehensive and robust pre-assessments for respite and permanent
residents to ensure that care plans are effective; this will include the level of
observation required. Families will be asked to read and sign the pre-assessment
once complete to ensure nothing is missed
➢ Carers to complete further training in regard to professional boundaries
➢ Information regarding orders or quotes for equipment should be communicated to
all interested parties to prevent delays in provision
➢ During initial assessments, the service user’s wishes around frequency of personal
care tasks will be clarified
➢ Management Team to audit on a daily basis that residents are offered drinks
regularly and whether they wish for food and drink to remain or be cleared away.
➢ Staff will physically offer a choice of fresh clothes to residents each day giving the
opportunity to make a choice

- 20 -

Agenda Item 15
Page 45
8. Local Government Ombudsman (LGO) Complaints
8.1 Complaints Received and Decision Notices
The LGO annual statistics show that they received 16,863 complaints and enquiries about
local authorities in 2016/17. In comparison, the LGO considered two complaints about
Central Bedfordshire Council’s Adult Social Care services during this period. The table
below sets out the complaints received and any Ombudsman decisions reached:
Complaint
The complainant says a social worker was
rude to her and the service user at a debt
advice meeting in September 2015; that the
Council delayed in organising the
application for and direct payment funding
of carers services; that the Council in April
2015 failed to backdate a carer’s direct
payment to March 2015; and made false
allegations about the service user in an
assessment which was sent to his
psychiatrist.

Ombudsman Decision
The complainant complains on her own
behalf and that of her son. The evidence
does not enable the Ombudsman to make a
finding on events if a September 2015
meeting between the complainant, her son
and a social worker. The Council delayed
setting up and paying the complainant’s
carers payments. The injustice caused by
the fault has been remedied by the Council.
There was miscommunication between the
Council and the complainant which led to
inaccurate information about her son being
passed to his psychiatrist. However, this
caused no significant injustice and the
Council has remedied it.
The complainant is unhappy with the
The Council was at fault in the way it carried
Council’s safeguarding investigation into her
out a review into the complainant’s
allegations that her grandfather was
concerns that her grandfather was being
neglected in a care home.
neglected in a care home. There was also
fault leading to injustice in the care home’s
record-keeping. This led to uncertainty for
the service user’s family over the care he
received. The Ombudsman recommends
the Council apologises to the complainant
and her mother and pays them each £250
for this avoidable distress. The care home
should also apologise to the complainant
and her mother for the uncertainty caused
due to the home’s failure to keep accurate
records.

- 21 -

Agenda Item 15
Page 46
9. Monitoring and Quality Assurance
9.1 Effectiveness of Complaints Handling
Service users, their representatives and people affected by the actions of Adult Social
Care services can access the Council’s complaints procedure and the Local Government
Ombudsman.
The Customer Relations Team monitors the operation and effectiveness of the complaints
procedure as well as how information about complaints is being used to improve services
and delivery.
Local Resolution has generally been an effective means of dealing with complaints with
only two being escalated to Assistant Director level and two complaints being investigated
by the Local Government Ombudsman in 2016/17.
Complaints were seen as important feedback and a means of identifying how practices
may be changed for the better. The customer experience in complaints has led to some
improvements to practice. In 2015/16, we reported that there was room for improvement
to ensure all complaints had an individual action plan when 81% of cases had plans. This
has improved slightly in 2016/17, with 82% of cases having action plans. 67% of those
cases were managed in line with the action plan which is a slight drop on last year (70%).
There is still room for improvement in this area but in the cases where there was no action
plan the service area were meeting the minimum standards in line with best practice in half
of those complaints (50%).

9.2 Financial Implications
There are a number of ways in which the local authority can incur costs as part of the
statutory complaints process for Adult Social Care Services.
Formal Investigation is normally achieved by appointing an investigating officer. The
investigating officer may be employed by the local authority or be externally
commissioned. The investigating officer however cannot be in direct line management of
the service complained about. Due to the nature of the complaints that tend to be suitable
for formal investigation the usual practice is to externally commission an investigating
officer specifically for that piece of work.
In addition, there may be rare occasions where financial redress is offered through the
complaints procedure. Financial redress can be provided to acknowledge avoidable
distress; harm; risk; or other unfair impact. As injustice of this nature cannot generally be
remedied by a payment the amount is usually symbolic to acknowledge the impact of fault
on the complainant. The amount will depend on the circumstances of the case and this
can be paid through local settlement following investigation by the Local Government
Ombudsman but can also be recommended during the local authority complaints process.
Any financial costs incurred are the responsibility of Adult Social Care Services. To assist
in minimising the risk of costs the Customer Relations Team is actively involved in
assessing the seriousness of complaints, whether complainants are eligible to use the

- 22 -

Agenda Item 15
Page 47
statutory complaints procedure and ensuring appropriate and reasonable remedies are
recommended.
The below table details the total costs incurred during 2016/17:
Reasons for Cost
Formal Investigation
Financial Redress (LGO Recommendation)
TOTAL

2016/17 Spend
£0.00
£500.00
£500.00

- 23 -

Agenda Item 15
Page 48

10. Customer Relations Team – Supporting Adult
Social Care
The Customer Relations Team supports Adult Social Care Services by:
✓ Providing guidance, advice and support to staff on the management of
complaints
✓ Supporting staff involved in the complaints procedure
✓ Quality assurance of complaint responses
✓ Managing challenges to complaint handling and responses
✓ Liaison with the Local Government Ombudsman
✓ Overseeing the arrangements for communicating and publicising the
complaints procedure
✓ Evaluating and reporting on the numbers, types, outcomes and trends
of complaints to inform practice, development and service planning
✓ Providing a means to capture the learning from complaints to
contribute to practice development, commissioning and service
planning
During 2017/18 the Customer Relations Team will focus on a number of
initiatives:
➢ Continue to ensure the complaints procedure is accessible
➢ Continue to promote the Customer Relations root-cause analysis tool
to help managers with identifying systemic improvements
➢ Continue to promote the Customer Relations toolkit for handling
persistent customers consistently and fairly
➢ Continue to ensure complaints are handled responsively and in a
flexible way
➢ Work collaboratively with colleagues to achieve a reduction in levels of
complaints upheld
➢ Maintain the low levels of complaint investigations by the Local
Government Ombudsman and where the LGO finds fault
➢ Improve capture of equality and diversity information
➢ Undertake a project to move the admin function of the Customer
Relations Team into the Customer Service Centre. This will provide
the Customer Relations Team with some much-needed capacity to
focus on promoting good complaints handling across the Council

Agenda Item 15
Page 49

A great place to live and work

Contact us…
by telephone: 0300 300 4995
by email: Customer.Relations@centralbedfordshire.gov.uk
on the web: www.centralbedfordshire.gov.uk
Write to Central Bedfordshire Council, Priory House,
Monks Walk, Chicksands, Shefford, Bedfordshire SG17 5TQ

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 16
Page 51
Central Bedfordshire Council
SOCIAL CARE HEALTH AND HOUSING OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE
22 January 2018

Work Programme and Executive Forward Plan
Advising Officer:

Paula Everitt, Scrutiny Policy Adviser
Paula.Everitt@centralbedfordshire.gov.uk

Purpose of this report
The report provides Members with details of the currently drafted Committee
work programme and the latest Executive Forward Plan.
RECOMMENDATIONS
The Committee is asked to:
1.

Consider and approve the work programme attached, subject to any
further amendments it may wish to make.

2.

Consider the Executive Forward Plan; and

3.

Consider whether it wishes to suggest any further items for the work
programme and/or establish any enquiries to assist it in reviewing
specific items.

Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme
1.

Throughout June and July 2016 residents were encouraged to propose
items to be considered by the Council’s overview and scrutiny
committees.

2.

In addition a workshop took place in June 2016 at which Members and
partners were invited to propose additional items and to indicate the
priorities that they would like to consider throughout 2016/17.

3.

Throughout this process Members have been encouraged to adopt
several key principles relating to ways of working that were previously
agreed by the Overview and Scrutiny Co-ordination Panel, namely:



Minimising duplication
Focusing on requested items
Focusing on outcomes and the 5-year plan

Agenda Item 16
Page 52
4.

A long-list of items was presented to the OSC at their previous meeting
where Members agreed those items they would like to be added to
further meetings.

5.

This work programme aims to provide a balance of those items on
which the Executive would be grateful for a steer in addition to those
items that the Overview and Scrutiny Committee (OSC) has proactively
requested to receive.

6.

The Committee is requested to consider the work programme and the
indicated outcomes at appendix 1 and to amend or add to it as
necessary.

Overview and Scrutiny Task Forces
7.

In addition to consideration of the work programme, Members may also
wish to consider how each item will be reviewed, i.e. by the Committee
itself (over one or a number of Committee meetings) or by establishing
a Member Task Force to review an item in greater depth and report
back its findings.

Executive Forward Plan
8.

Listed below are those items relating specifically to this Committee’s
terms of reference contained in the latest version of the Executive
Forward Plan that are not presently included in the Committee’s work
programme. The full Executive Forward Plan can be viewed on the
Council’s website at the link at the end of this report:-

Item
The Future of Westlands Older Persons Home - The
Outcome of the Consultation and Procurement
Processes
Independent Living Scheme at Houghton Regis Central
Non Key Decisions
Treasury Management Strategy and Treasury Policy
Fees and Charges, Social Care Health & Housing April
2018
Final Budget 2018/19 and Medium Term Financial Plan
Final Capital Programme 2018/19 to 2021/22
Final Budget for the Housing Revenue Account (Landlord
Business Plan) 2018/19
2017/18 Quarter 3 Performance Report

Indicative Exec
Meeting date
03 April 2018
07 August 2018
Indicative Exec
Meeting date
6 February 2018
6 February 2018
6 February 2018
6 February 2018
6 February 2018
03 April 2018

Corporate Implications
9.

The work programme of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee will
contribute indirectly to all 5 Council priorities. Whilst there are no direct

Agenda Item 16
Page 53
implications arising from this report the implications of proposals will be
details in full in each report submitted to the Committee.
Conclusion and next Steps
10.

Members are requested to consider and agree the attached work
programme, subject to any further amendment/additions they may wish
to make and highlight those items within it where they may wish to
establish a Task Force to assist the Committee in its work. This will
allow officers to plan accordingly but will not preclude further items
being added during the course of the year if Members so wish and
capacity exists.

Appendix A - OSC work programme
Background Papers
Executive Forward Plan (can be viewed at any time on the Council’s website)
at the following link:http://centralbeds.moderngov.co.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=577&RD=0

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix A - Social Care Health and Housing OSC Work Programme

Meeting date

Report Title

Description

19 March 2018

Planning to meet the needs of an ageing
population
Written update on the Primary Care
service in West Mid Beds
Integration of Health and Social Care in
Central Bedfordshire Enquiry Report
Phase II
Ambulance Trust Update tbc

To receive a report on how the Council plans to meet the Ageing Population
needs in Central Bedfordshire
Progress made to ensure the residents of West Mid Beds are provided with
Primary Care services
To receive the report of the Enquiry Team regarding the Integration of Health
and Social Care in Central Bedfordshire and areas of good practice.

19 March 2018
19 March 2018

19 March 2018
19 March 2018

19 March 2018
19 March 2018
19 March 2018
14 May 2018

01 September 2018

Update on progress regarding the
proposed Hospital Merger
Quality Accounts

Let's Rent Policy/offer update
Update on contract for residential and
nursing home places
Homelessness Reduction update

Introduction to the new provider (to be announced mid November)
To received details of the Commissioning arrangements delegated by NHS
England.
To receive an update on proposed merger of the Luton and Dunstable and
Bedford Hospitals
To receive the Quality Accounts provided by local hospitals and NHS Care
providers in Central Bedfordshire and provide any comments as they feel
appropriate.
To receive an updated on the implementation of the new duties
To receive an update on the first six months of the new contract.
Report on the Homelessness implementation action plan

Page 55

Agenda Item 16

04 June 2018
01 September 2018

Sustainable and Transformation
Programme for the Bedfordshire, Luton
and Milton Keynes
Introduction to the new Community
Health Services Team ELFT
CCG Delegated Commissioning Role

To receive an updated from the Ambulance Trust on Performance and the
introduction of the new national standards.
To receive an update on the Sustainable and Transformation Programme for the
Bedfordshire, Luton and Milton Keynes footprint.

This page is intentionally left blank

